



Region D Homeland Security Oversight Committee

Meeting Minutes

July 17, 2019

9:00 A.M.

University of Missouri Southwest Research Center

14548 Highway H, Mt. Vernon, MO

Attendance:

RHSOC Members:

David Hall, Chair
Bonnie Witt-Schulte, Emergency Management
Chad Eutsler, Police
Matt Stoller, Sheriff
Lynn Hollandworth, Fire
Chris Berndt, HSRRS
David Brock, Public Works
Tim Selvey, County Commission
Paul Carter, Industry/LEPC
Jeff Hawkins, EMS
JR Webb, 911
Shea Lane, Volunteer Groups
David Cope, Agriculture

RHSOC Alternates:

Melissa Duckworth, Emergency Management
Charla Geller, Emergency Management
Joe Moore, Police
Jim Furgerson, Fire
David Pennington, Fire
Jessica Wagner, County Health
Bryan Newberry, HSRRS
Gregg Sweeten, Mayor/City Administrator
Hank Smythe, Commissioner
Linda Barger, Volunteer Groups
Julie Stolting, Volunteer Groups
Russ Conroy, Hospitals
Quentin Black, Hospitals

Open Meeting

Opening Comments/Pledge of Allegiance

David Hall opened the meeting at 9:03 a.m., followed by the Pledge of Allegiance.

Roll Call/Introductions

Roll call was taken and self-introductions were made.

Approval of Consent Agenda

Bonnie Witt-Schulte moved and Chris Berndt seconded the motion to approve the consent agenda for the July 17, 2019 meeting with revised agenda. Motion carried unanimously.

Ex-Officios:

Carl Harris, DNR
Larry Forgey, MDA
Justin Adams, USACE KC
Jason Ray, SMCOC

Guests/Visitors:

Michelle Branson, OHS
Phil Amtower, Christian County EMA
Cheryl Mitchell, Christian County EMA
Kim Kinder, Dade County EMA
Robbin Sawyer, Greene County OEM
Tom Martin, Stone County OEM
Ryan Martin, Stone County OEM
Keith Stammer, Jasper County EMA
Janell Westbrook, Greene Co Sheriff
Ted Martin, Branson Fire
Scott Moore, Battlefield Fire/IST
Jonathan Ayres, Region D WebEOC
Jenny Solomon, American Red Cross

Staff:

Dorothy Wittorff-Sandgren, SMCOC
Megan Clark, SMCOC

Committee Representatives Reports

RHSOC Chairs Meeting – David Hall

Format for meeting changed a little including shorter reports. Most important item on this meeting's agenda was the grant funding allocations for FY19. Total funding for the locals was \$2,446,500. Eighty percent goes to the locals and 20 percent goes to Law Enforcement. The Work Plan, training and exercise, and cybersecurity are taken off the top. This left \$1,996,500 to be distributed to the regions for projects. It is a slight increase from FY18. The Region D share is \$355,133.12, which includes the Management and Administration (M&A). It was recommended to forward this to the Homeland Security Advisory Council (HSAC) for approval, but with the \$125,000 for Statewide training and exercise to be held contingent upon SEMA letting them know how the money will be spent. There have been issues in the past with it not being used in time, and the Chairs don't want that to happen again.

Another change to the meetings is highlighting what the regions are doing with funding. One region will give a short presentation at each meeting, and he did the first one. He highlighted the Urban Search and Rescue (USAR) and Swiftwater Rescue and how they work regionally. He has a copy of the presentation if anyone would like to have it.

The Safe Schools Conference to be held in Springfield was emphasized at the meeting. Captain Ryan Burckhardt talked about the Missouri Information Analysis Center (MIAC) and Cybersecurity. They have added a regional representative now that is being covered by the local funds. Mr. Hall requested that this person come out to regional meetings when possible. They have also made a request to the Department of Homeland Security (DHS) to create the ability to have a liaison between regions and MIAC with a secret level clearance. The School Violence Hotline was housed in the Department of Health and Human Services and has now been moved over to the MIAC. It is called Courage2Report and is managed 24/7.

Exercise/Training – Melissa Duckworth

Written report in handouts. She emphasized the upcoming regional exercises. A Tabletop Exercise is scheduled on September 12 from 1:00-4:00 p.m. and will be cybersecurity-based. A Full-Scale Exercise is scheduled for October 31 from 9:00 a.m.-12:00 p.m.

TICP Working Group – Jonathan Ayres

Nothing to report.

WebEOC Group – Jonathan Ayres

WebEOC was able to pick up some of the slack when NWSChat had some issues earlier in the spring. There have been additional transitions within the ownership platform. The platform is being rebuilt and new interfaces are being worked on. A lot of emergency management directors have requested the Integrated Public Alert & Warning System (IPAWS) that allows them to send orders through cellphones through a broadcast-type system that doesn't require a subscription, and they are looking into that.

Strategic Planning Working Group – Ted Martin

Gave report under Old Business.

Old Business

Homeland Security Grant Program Procurement Updates – Dorothy Wittorff-Sandgren

FY16: Finished except for remaining M&A. Due to a vendor using VISA Payment, we got a rebate of \$59.54 which has to be sent back to OHS because it is from the reallocated funds.

FY17: Everything for FY17 has been purchased and approximately \$50,000 is now going towards FY18 items that weren't funded including finishing up the Greene County Sheriff's Command Post and the radios that were removed until funding was available for Western Taney County Fire District.

FY18: Most of the Regional Preparedness projects have been completed. Working on getting purchase orders through on larger items.

Cybersecurity – David Hall

David Hall covered the new representative in the RHSOC Chair Meeting report. Bonnie Witt-Schulte reported that she reached out to three different entities and has one that might be a possibility. They will let her know in the next couple of weeks if they will be able to sit on the RHSOC.

Inventory Requests – Dorothy Wittorff-Sandgren

There were two requests to dispose of inventory. The first was Kim Kinder of Dade County who requested the disposition of the old Elliott Computer that was no longer functioning. Bonnie Witt-Schulte moved and J.R. Webb seconded the motion for the disposition of Dade County's old Elliott System computer. Motion carried unanimously.

Dennis Kimrey of the Vernon County Health Department requested the disposition of the Yaesu Ham Radio purchase with FY10 funds. It was destroyed by a lightning strike and will be replaced from the insurance. The new ham radio will be added to inventory once it is purchased. J.R. Webb moved and Shea Lane seconded the motion for the disposition of the Vernon County Health Department's Yaesu Ham Radio. Motion carried unanimously.

THIRA – David Hall

David Hall reported that the State is providing four scenarios this year to utilize with the regional Threat and Hazard Identification and Risk Assessment (THIRA). In this way, it will be the same across the state. The scenarios are a complex, coordinated terrorist attack, an extreme weather event, a New Madrid seismic zone event, and a public health emergency. OHS wants the THIRA information back by November 15. Since the scenarios are similar to what we did in the previous THIRA, he believes it will only take one or two meetings to do it this year. The first meeting to work on the THIRA was scheduled for August 21 at 9:00 a.m. at the Southwest Research Center. Michelle Branson reminded everyone that participation in the THIRA was a requirement for those receiving Emergency Management Performance Grant (EMPG) funding.

Strategic Plan – Ted Martin

Ted Martin stated that today he wanted to look for keywords for their mission statement and vision statement. He will take it back to the committee and use the keywords to provide a guidance document. He wanted keywords that described the RHSOC, who we are and what we do. Several were suggested, including collaboration, partnership, preparedness, relationships, response, service, community-level engagement, leadership in the region, respect, diversity and experience. Chief Martin said he would take this list and bring back a mission statement to the next meeting for the RHSOC to review.

The next step involved the vision statement for the RHSOC. Suggestions included: to be a leader in working together to prepare our region and respond to emergencies in order to reduce the impact to our communities; prepare the entire region; have full buy-in with all the departments, make sure they are communicating with everybody, even the smallest communities in our region; and have a prepared and resilient community through cooperation with multi-jurisdiction, multi-discipline assets.

New Business

Scoring of FY19 SHSP Applications – David Hall

David Hall said that he appreciated the scorers taking the time going through and scoring the applications. The first part of the process was the scoring and ranking. The second part now is determining what will be funded. The RHSOC can discuss the scoring results and make adjustments. The order cannot be changed because the scoring results are final. Any changes must have a justification as to why to report to OHS.

The results are as follows:

Scores	ID	Title	Organization	Budget Total	Balance
31.64	102301	Region D - Communications Vehicle Project Jasper County	Jasper County, Sheriff's Office	\$18,800.00	\$318,576.46
31.33	102503	Region D - Communications Support Vehicle Sustainment Greene County	Greene County Emergency Management Agency	\$21,024.32	\$297,552.14
30.69	102515	Structural Collapse Sustainment	Taney County, Western Fire Protection District	\$14,000.00	\$283,552.14
30.08	102366	Region D Mobile Command Vehicle Sustainment	Greene County, Sheriff's Office	\$28,220.46	\$255,331.68
30.08	102637	Hazmat Monitor Replacement	City of Springfield - Fire Dept	\$3,504.00	\$251,827.68
30.07	102450	Request to replace SWAT SCBA	Joplin, Police Department	\$12,000.00	\$239,827.68
30.00	102456	Hazmat Equipment Sustainment	City of Springfield - Fire Dept	\$93,000.00	\$146,827.68
29.83	102401	Hazmat Monitor Sustainment	City of Springfield - Fire Dept	\$3,457.00	\$143,370.68
29.33	102146	SFD Bomb Squad EOD-10 Bomb Suit	City of Springfield - Fire Dept	\$31,501.00	\$111,869.68
28.50	102412	Hazmat Monitor Replacement	City of Springfield - Fire Dept	\$134,060.00	(\$22,190.32)
28.33	102165	FPX Nano Kit (Portable X-Ray)	City of Springfield - Fire Dept	\$39,447.92	(\$61,638.24)
28.23	102653	FY19 - Region D - HSRRS Taney County	Taney County, Western Fire Protection District	\$2,488.00	(\$64,126.24)
27.83	102573	FY19 - Missouri Region D WebEOC Program Sustainment	Greene County Emergency Management Agency	\$42,625.00	(\$106,751.24)
27.75	102153	Remotec ANDROS FX Bomb Robot	City of Springfield - Fire Dept	\$169,562.00	(\$276,313.24)
27.71	101904	FY19 - Region D - MOCERT1 Project Christian County	Christian County Emergency Management Agency	\$10,446.36	(\$286,759.60)
27.33	102172	Hazmat Monitor Repair Training	City of Springfield - Fire Dept	\$4,580.00	(\$291,339.60)
26.08	102430	Hazmat Equipment Sustainment	City of Springfield - Fire Dept	\$3,700.00	(\$295,039.60)
21.83	102701	Newton County Central Dispatch Center	Newton County Emergency Management Agency	\$16,842.75	(\$311,882.35)
20.86	102147	Expansion of Communications Capability	Webster County Emergency Management Agency	\$7,970.45	(\$319,852.80)
19.21	102006	SCBA Bottle Replacement	Ebenezer Fire Protection District	\$98,648.00	(\$418,500.80)
Funding Amount			\$337,376.46	\$755,877.26	(\$405,658.21)

David Hall summarized the projects. After discussion, the following adjustments were made:

- The mast for the Jasper County Sheriff's Communications Vehicle was funded through the FY16 reallocation, reducing it to \$12,300.
- The camera for the Greene County Sheriff's Command Vehicle was not recommended by OHS, reducing it to \$18,365.
- Chris Berndt commented that he and all the EMDs in the region use WebEOC and disagreed with it not getting funded. Several there felt that the WebEOC is a very important asset to the region due

to continual usage in the region and agreed that it should be funded even if it was lower in scoring. Chief Berndt said that if you look at the numbers, it appears that the true maintenance costs were around \$26,000. Cutting the conference costs would reduce it to \$28,100.

- Shea Lane mentioned that some of the comments for the Springfield Fire Hazmat Monitor Replacement recommended partial funding by purchasing just one unit now. The RHSOC decided to reduce it to \$58,189.22 with any savings going to get one monitor and requesting the other next year.

All present RHSOC members can vote on funding the projects, but those with Conflicts of Interest will have to abstain from voting on projects submitted by their agencies. Mr. Hall asked if the RHSOC wanted to vote on each project or vote on all of them as a package. Those with Conflicts of Interest would just abstain. The members agreed to vote on it as a package.

Bonnie Witt-Schulte moved and Lynn Hollandworth seconded the motion to fund the projects in scoring order with adjustments and to use any reallocated monies to finish funding the Hazmat Monitor Replacement project.

Roll call vote was taken as shown below and motion passed.

RHSOC Member	Vote	RHSOC Member	Vote
Bonnie Witt-Schulte	Yes	Tim Selvey	Yes
Chad Eutsler	Abstain	Paul Carter	Yes
Matt Stoller	Abstain	Jeff Hawkins	Yes
Lynn Hollandworth	Yes	J.R. Webb	Abstain
Jessica Wagner	Yes	Shea Lane	Yes
Chris Berndt	Abstain	David Cope	Yes
David Brock	Yes	Russ Conroy	Yes
Gregg Sweeten	Yes		

Michelle Branson brought it to the RHSOC's attention that the camera comments were in the wrong line item and should have been with the Greene County OEMs Communications Vehicle. As a result, it will be reduced to \$18,365, the Greene County Sheriff's Command Vehicle funded at \$28,100, and the Springfield Fire Hazmat Monitor Replacement reduced to \$50,993.08. Tim Selvey moved and Gregg Sweeten seconded the motion to make the appropriate adjustments to the Greene County OEM's Communication Vehicle, the Greene County Sheriff's Command Vehicle, and the Springfield Fire Hazmat Monitor Replacement funding totals.

Roll call vote was taken as shown below and motion passed.

RHSOC Member	Vote	RHSOC Member	Vote
Bonnie Witt-Schulte	Yes	Tim Selvey	Yes
Chad Eutsler	Abstain	Paul Carter	Yes
Matt Stoller	Abstain	Jeff Hawkins	Yes
Lynn Hollandworth	Yes	J.R. Webb	Abstain
Jessica Wagner	Yes	Shea Lane	Yes
Chris Berndt	Yes	David Cope	Yes
David Brock	Yes	Russ Conroy	Yes
Gregg Sweeten	Yes		

Final funding for FY19 to be submitted to OHS and what didn't get funded is as follows:

Scores	ID	Title	Organization	Budget Total	Awarded	Balance
31.64	102301	Region D - Communications Vehicle Project Jasper County	Jasper County, Sheriff's Office	\$18,800.00	\$12,300.00	\$325,076.46
31.33	102503	Region D - Communications Support Vehicle Sustainment Greene County	Greene County Emergency Management Agency	\$21,024.32	\$18,365.00	\$306,711.46
30.69	102515	Structural Collapse Sustainment	Taney County, Western Fire Protection District	\$14,000.00	\$14,000.00	\$292,711.46
30.08	102366	Region D Mobile Command Vehicle Sustainment	Greene County, Sheriff's Office	\$28,220.46	\$28,220.46	\$264,491.00
30.08	102637	Hazmat Monitor Replacement	City of Springfield - Fire Dept	\$3,504.00	\$3,504.00	\$260,987.00
30.07	102450	Request to replace SWAT SCBA	Joplin, Police Department	\$12,000.00	\$12,000.00	\$248,987.00
30.00	102456	Hazmat Equipment Sustainment	City of Springfield - Fire Dept	\$93,000.00	\$93,000.00	\$155,987.00
29.83	102401	Hazmat Monitor Sustainment	City of Springfield - Fire Dept	\$3,457.00	\$3,457.00	\$152,530.00
29.33	102146	SFD Bomb Squad EOD-10 Bomb Suit	City of Springfield - Fire Dept	\$31,501.00	\$31,501.00	\$121,029.00
28.50	102412	Hazmat Monitor Replacement	City of Springfield - Fire Dept	\$134,060.00	\$50,993.08	\$70,035.92
28.33	102165	FPX Nano Kit (Portable X-Ray)	City of Springfield - Fire Dept	\$39,447.92	\$39,447.92	\$30,588.00
28.23	102653	FY19 - Region D - HSRRS Taney County	Taney County, Western Fire Protection District	\$2,488.00	\$2,488.00	\$28,100.00
27.83	102573	FY19 - Missouri Region D WebEOC Program Sustainment	Greene County Emergency Management Agency	\$42,625.00	\$28,100.00	\$0.00
27.75	102153	Remotec ANDROS FX Bomb Robot	City of Springfield - Fire Dept	\$169,562.00	\$169,562.00	(\$169,562.00)
27.71	101904	FY19 - Region D - MOCERT1 Project Christian County	Christian County Emergency Management Agency	\$10,446.36	\$10,446.36	(\$180,008.36)
27.33	102172	Hazmat Monitor Repair Training	City of Springfield - Fire Dept	\$4,580.00	\$4,580.00	(\$184,588.36)
26.08	102430	Hazmat Equipment Sustainment	City of Springfield - Fire Dept	\$3,700.00	\$3,700.00	(\$188,288.36)
21.83	102701	Newton County Central Dispatch Center	Newton County Emergency Management Agency	\$16,842.75	\$16,842.75	(\$205,131.11)
20.86	102147	Expansion of communications capability	Webster County Emergency Management Agency	\$7,970.45	\$7,970.45	(\$213,101.56)
19.21	102006	SCBA Bottle Replacement	Ebenezer Fire Protection District	\$98,648.00	\$98,648.00	(\$311,749.56)

State Reports

OHS Update – HSAC & Other Initiatives – Michelle Branson

Michelle Branson said that the THIRA had already been discussed. She reported that the cybersecurity representative is Angela Robinson and she started last week.

Homeland Security Grants Update- Michelle Branson

FY16: Extra funds were allocated and should be finishing up.

FY17: Is about halfway through with reimbursement requests.

FY18: Just starting with reimbursement requests.

FY19: OHS is going to try and push purchasing equipment within the first six months per RHSOC Chairs' request. Depending on how it works will determine if it will be required with FY20 funds.

Interoperable Communications – Bryan Courtney

Not present. Written report in handouts.

DHSS - Douglas Baker

Not present. No report.

DNR Update – Carl Harris

Nothing to report.

Agriculture Update – Dr. Larry Forgey

Dr. Steve Strubberg is now the State Veterinarian and Dr. Jean Schmidt is the new Assistant State Veterinarian. The African Swine Fever (ASF) functional exercise is scheduled for September 23 – 26. USDA Farm Bill funding will have some funding that will be for exercises.

Mutual Aid – Kevin Virgin

Not present. Written report in handouts.

IST – Scott Moore

Written report in handouts. Scott Moore emphasized that they have reconvened as the advisory group regarding the Missouri Incident Management System (MIMS). They are planning to meet to discuss infrastructure as far as how IT communicates between different disciplines. The group is looking at how are the disciplines collecting resources and how are they distributing them data-wise. IST has also been asked to help with the administration of State-level exercises.

Disciplinary Group Reports

Chair – David Hall listed the classes that SEMA is planning to hold this year with the \$125,000 that is allocated to them. As a reminder, mileage is now reimbursed at 75 miles and no meals are covered.

Emergency Management – Bonnie Witt-Schulte reported that they are focused on exercises and she will get the THIRA information out to the EMDs.

Volunteer Groups – Shea Lane thanked everyone for their volunteer work since they've been activated since March. A laundry trailer came from Virginia to help flooded families. Linda Barger reported that the National CERT Conference will be held in Springfield in July 2020.

Hospitals – Russ Conroy said that they did a state-wide highly infectious (EBOLA) exercise involving Cox and Mercy as well as BJC in St. Louis. Members of the National Ebola Training and Education Center (NETEC) were there to observe. The exercise went well, and he wanted to thank all the partners that took part in it.

HSRRS – Chris Berndt reported that they wrapped up the swiftwater training and it went well.

911 – J.R. Webb reported that Senate Bill 291, a clarifying piece of legislation for the 911 funding bill that passed last year, was passed and signed by the governor last week.

Other Business/Open Discussion

Dorothy Wittorff-Sandgren reported that the disciplinary primary representatives rotating off the RHSOC Committee in October are HSRRS, Public Works, Mayor/City Administrator, Industry/LEPC, Utilities, EMS, 911, Volunteer Groups, and Schools. A new Chair and Vice-Chair will also be chosen. David Hall asked that these disciplines talk to their groups and see if they can find people interested in serving.

Next Meeting Date

The next meeting is scheduled to be held on October 16, 2019 at 9:00 a.m. Location will be the MU Southwest Research Center in Mt. Vernon.

Adjourn

Matt Stoller moved and Chris Berndt seconded the motion to adjourn. Motion carried. Meeting adjourned at 10:50 a.m.



David Hall, Region D RHSOC Chair



Date Approved

RHSOC Training & Exercise

- **UPCOMING TRAININGS:** register through sematraining.com; there is a maximum limit on students and some are full or almost full.
 - 7/24-7/26- ICS 300 Intermediate ICS- Christian Co.
 - 8/5-8/6- Local Volunteer & Donations Mgt.- Christian Co.
 - 8/17- Handling Propane Gas Emergencies- Dallas Co.
 - 8/20-8/22- HSEEP Training Course- Greene Co.
 - 8/21- Chemical Suicide: Information for Emergency Responders- Jasper Co.
 - 9/20-9/22- Hazardous Materials Operations- Cedar Co.
 - 10/9- ICS/EOC Interface Workshop-Greene Co.
- These are only the trainings in Region D; a full list can be found at sematraining.com. Those trainings listed as Local Only do not provide lodging and reimbursement for meals/mileage. Those trainings listed as MERC are hazardous materials classes offered through the Missouri Emergency Response Commission.
- Changes at SEMA Training. Travel and Meal Reimbursement changes went into effect January 1, 2019. Mileage to be eligible for lodging is 75 miles or more from the class location (used to 50 miles) and meals are no longer reimbursed. MERC courses are excluded from the changes.
- Regional Exercises- Tabletop Exercise scheduled for September 12, 2019 from 1:00-4:00pm at the Greene County PSC. Full-Scale Exercise scheduled for October 31, 2019 from 9:00a-12:00p in each jurisdiction's EOC. All exercises must now be registered for through the sematraining.com site just like you register for training.
- I interested in the other exercises going on around the region. If you have one in your community through another agency/organization I would love to know about it.

Respectfully submitted by: Melissa Duckworth; melissad@co.taney.mo.us

MISSOURI INTEROPERABILITY CENTER UPDATE JUNE 2019

Missouri Statewide Interoperability Network Update

- MOSWIN Infrastructure Update new sites completed FY19
 - Richmond
 - Stewartsville
 - Houston
 - Gainesville
 - Rich Fountain
 - Dexter
 - Marble Hill
 - New Madrid
 - Caruthersville
 - Warsaw
- Local add-on initiatives
 - Ray County – MCC7500 wireline console
 - Branson - MCC7500 wireline console
 - Cape Girardeau -2 MCC7500 wireline consoles; 3-site simul-cell add-on
 - Stone County 911 - MCC7500 wireline console
- Local add-on initiatives in progress
 - City of Springfield/Greene County/Springfield Utilities

Statewide Interoperability Coordinator (SWIC) Activities

- 2019 Training and Technical Assistance – dates, time and location to be determined
 - Incident Tactical Dispatcher – July 15-18 Overland Park, KS
- Shaken Fury – ICS205 communications plans coordinated for MONG and MO Task Force 1 for Cape Girardeau, Maryville, Ft. Leonard Wood, Jefferson City
- Encryption SOP in development – AES 256, multi-key required
- MO Field Operations Guide being updated – will be available via smartphone app
- MOU with US Department of Interior in process – reference 20 Federal interoperable channels for use by non-Federal responders
- Central States Communications Exercise is scheduled to be held at the Downstream Resort Complex in Quapaw, OK / Joplin, MO on September 25-27, 2019
 - Event registration is online at www.central-states-comms.org

MIC - 911

- MIC providing project and administrative support for the 911 Board and 911 Grant
 - MO 911 Service Board Meeting June 13 1pm -3pm Jefferson City
 - NHTSA 911 Grant – in review by NHTSA

MO SLIGP – FirstNet Update

- LTE policy: No LTE licenses or MOSWIN interfaces will be provisioned without MIC approval. All proposed LTE/MOSWIN licenses and/or interfaces are subject to MIC approval prior to purchase.
- LTE interfaces utilizing ROIP falls under the MOSWIN LTE policy

DISCIPLINES

	AGENCIES	RADIOS	LEVEL 1	LEVEL 2	CONTROL STATIONS
Law Enforcement	415	18,249	127	288	155
- Airport Law Enforcement	2	830	1	1	2
- Campus Law Enforcement	12	263	2	10	6
- Municipal Law Enforcement	296	13,523	77	219	83
- County Sheriffs	101	3,543	47	54	64
- Railroad Law Enforcement	4	90	0	4	0
Fire Departments	289	6,293	17	272	34
EMS Departments	81	1,090	12	69	24
Dispatch	63	314	5	58	59
Public Safety	5	398	3	2	4
Emergency Management	106	716	1	105	10
Hospitals	82	212	2	80	68
Public Health	116	276	1	115	97
Public Works/Transportation	42	2,467	1	41	2
Governmental Entities	36	689	0	36	26
State Agencies	30	5,915	13	17	14
Federal Agencies	21	2,432	10	11	6
Other Responders	20	1,023	3	17	18
Outstate Partners	2	70	0	2	0
Totals	1,308	40,144	195	1,113	517

Michael L Parson
Governor

Sandra K Karsten
Director

J. Tim Bean
State Fire Marshal



205 Jefferson Street, Suite 1315
Mailing Address: P.O. Box 844
Jefferson City, MO 65102-0844
Telephone: (573) 751-2930
E-Mail: firesafe@dfs.dps.mo.gov
Website: www.dfs.dps.mo.gov

**DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY
DIVISION OF FIRE SAFETY**

RHSOC Committee Members,

On behalf of The Division of Fire Safety, I am pleased to announce that the May 1, 2019 MOSCOPE (to include Annex A: FIREMAP) is officially published and release for use by the Statewide Fire Mutual Aid System. I believe that I can speak for everyone at the Division of Fire Safety that we are open to any suggestions that will make the plan more efficient, accurate, and timely when it comes to the coordination of Statewide Fire Mutual Aid. We can update and release subsequent versions of the document as we go along.

You can now find MOSCOPE by going to the Division of Fire Safety website at:
<https://dfs.dps.mo.gov/programs/resources/mutual-aid.php>. What you will find here is:

- Updated Links under "Mutual Aid"
 - o Statewide Plan and Fire Plan for May 1, 2019
 - o Annexes B, D, and E with links to March 2016 MOSCOPE until new versions are ready to be released
 - o Link to NIMS Mutual Aid Guidance and where a lot of the changes to MOSCOPE came from
 - o Coordinators and RTLTL links as before
 - o Link to updated Resource Request Checklist from updated FIREMAP
- Verbiage for Statewide Mutual Aid was updated to remove IST from under Fire Mutual Aid
 - o The Content of FIREMAP directs agencies to contact their Regional or State Coordinator, or SEMA directly, for requesting IST Support.
- New Fire Mutual Aid Flow Chart

As stated above, Annexes B, D, and E of the original MOSCOPE are still listed with the 2016 plan. These annexes cover Statewide Law, EMS, and Coroner/Medical Examiner Mutual Aid and are all currently under revision by their respective coordinators and are all very close to being ready for release under the 2019 Base Plan. In addition to these, there are Public Health and Chaplain Mutual Aid Plans that will soon follow these updates.

Missouri's Fire Service is now live with this plan and is utilizing it in our day to day business, to include recent disasters and incidents that have affected communities around the state.

If you have any questions or comments, or would otherwise like to discuss anything with the new MOSCOPE plan and/or any of its Annexes, please contact me at (573) 751-1601 or matt.luetkemeyer@dfs.dps.mo.gov.


Respectfully,

Matt Luetkemeyer
Statewide Fire Mutual Aid Coordinator



SOUTHWEST MISSOURI INCIDENT SUPPORT TEAM

4117 W. Second Street
Battlefield, MO 65619

www.swmoist.com 

PHONE: (417) 881-9018

FAX: (417) 887-9914



RHSOC Update

July 11, 2019

The Southwest Missouri IST continues to look for, and attend, courses offered to allow our personnel to receive the vital training for our team. Recent attendance to Operations Section Chief course in Warrenton, MO. We have several attending the Finance Section Chief in Columbia which is a SEMA funded course in August. We continue to look for the best opportunity for our personnel to attend training, while maintaining a fiscal responsibility for the funds allotted by RHSOC.

Several team members deployed in support of Logan-Rogersville community during their tornado response. This was short duration, however; the training and experience of the team proved beneficial to the locals during this response. We have been requested to support the Communications Vehicle Roundup at Downstream in September.

We continue to be actively engaged in the MIMS advisory group with SEMA, MOEMA, Region C IST and Central MO IST. Our committees continue to be active. The primary project continues to be the logistics committee which has worked with SEMA and the SMCOG for accurate tracking of our inventory. SEMA has been busy with statewide flooding, however; strategic planning is kicking off again this month.

We appreciate the RHSOCs continued support of the SW Missouri IST. If we can be of any assistance to you or your agency, please let us know.

SW MO IST Command Staff

Southwest Missouri Incident Support Team
4117 W 2nd Street,
Battlefield, MO 65619